BYLAWS OF FREE GEEK SEATTLE, A NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

The name of the organization is FREE GEEK SEATTLE, A NON-PROFIT
CORPORATION (thereby will be referred as "FREE GEEK". The organization shall have
an office located at, Washington,
and at such other places as shall be designated by the Board of Directors
from time to time by resolution. The organization has not been formed for the making of
any profit, or personal financial gain. The assets and income of the organization shall
not be distributable to, or benefit the trustees, directors, or officers or other individuals.
The assets and income shall only be used to promote corporate purposes as described
below. Nothing contained herein, however, shall be deemed to prohibit the payment of
reasonable compensation to employees and independent contractors for services
provided for the benefit of the organization. The organization is organized exclusively for
charitable and educational purposes. This organization shall not carry on any other
activities not permitted to be carried on by a organization exempt from federal income
tax. The organization shall not participate in any political campaign in any manner. The
organization shall not attempt to influence legislation. The organization is organized
exclusively for charitable, scientific and educational purposes.

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE

- a. Free Geek is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and as the same may hereafter be amended (the "Code"), including the making of distributions directly in support of such purposes or the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c) (3) of the Code. References to sections of the Code shall be construed to include corresponding sections of any future federal tax code.
- b. The primary purpose(s) of Free Geek, in furtherance of its charitable and educational purpose, shall be to recycle technology and provide access to computers, the Internet, education and job skills in exchange for community service.

ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP

Free Geek shall have no members. It shall be governed by a Board of Directors (the "Board").

ARTICLE III THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Function.

The Board shall provide for the oversight of the business and affairs of Free Geek and shall exercise all the powers of Free Geek as provided by the law and the Articles of Incorporation, but subject to any restrictions imposed by the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. The Board may by resolution delegate to committees, including an Executive Committee of their own number, or to Officers of Free Geek, such powers and functions as they may designate from time to time.

Section 2. Number and composition.

- a. The Board shall consist of at least three (3). The exact number shall be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board; provided, however, no decrease in the number of Directors shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent Director.
- b. At least two Directors shall have been designated by active volunteers (as defined by the Board) from their own number, to be their representatives on the Board ("Volunteer Representative Directors").
- c. The Board shall strive for a balanced composition among its membership of issue interests relevant to Free Geek's mission, interests of Free Geek client groups, and relevant skills. The Board shall also strive for at least 25% of the Directors to be Volunteer Representative Directors.

Section 3. Term.

- a. The term of each member of the Board shall be approximately two (2) years, except that the initial term of any director may be one year or two years, to the end that in each year the terms of as close as possible to one-half of the Directors shall expire. A Director, unless he or she first resigns or is removed, shall hold office for the term for which he or she is elected or until his or her successor is elected and qualified, but the term shall be extended if its expiration would cause the number of directors to fall below the minimum required number of directors.
- b. There shall be no limit on the number of terms which a Director may serve.

Section 4. Designation and Election Procedures.

a. Prior to the annual meeting of the Board, the Board shall arrange and hold a meeting

of Free Geek volunteers, for the purpose of designating of one or more Volunteer Representative Directors in accordance with Section 2.b. above, to the end that in no year will the Board include fewer than two Volunteer Representative Directors.

b. Prior to the annual meeting of the Board, the Board shall elect the successors to the Directors whose terms expire that year, other than Volunteer Representative Directors, except that a Director shall not vote or block consensus on that Director's own position. Nominations shall be sought from the community served by Free Geek, including but not limited to the Board, the Staff, and Volunteers.

Section 5. Annual Meeting.

The Board shall hold meetings at least once each calendar year, or more often as necessary. The Board shall, by its own resolution, designate such dates, times and places as it may choose for such meetings; provided, however, the annual meeting of the Board shall be held no later than the last day of October of each calendar year.

Section 6. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairperson and must be called by the Chairperson upon the written request of at least two Directors. Notice of a special meeting of the Board shall be mailed, hand-delivered or given verbally to each Director not less than 10 days prior to the meeting and no more than 60 days prior to the meeting. The notification shall include the date, time, place and agenda of the special meeting.

Section 7. Waiver of Notice.

A Director may at any time waive any notice required by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. Except as otherwise provided herein, such waiver must be in writing, signed by the Director entitled to notice, specify the meeting for which notice is waived and be filed with the corporate records. A waiver of notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice. The attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Section 8. Quorum and Voting.

A simple majority of the Directors in office immediately before the meeting begins shall constitute a quorum at any meeting. Decisions made by such a quorum shall be the act of the Board unless a greater vote is required by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

Section 9. Presumption of Assent.

A Director of Free Geek who is present at a meeting of the Board at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken, unless his dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Director who voted in favor of such action.

Section 10. Removal or Resignation of Directors.

Any Director of Free Geek may resign from such position by delivering written notice of the resignation to the Board, its presiding Officer, the Chairperson or secretary, but such resignation shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of Free Geek. Any Director may be removed by the Board, for cause, by the Directors then in office, except for the director in question, whenever in its judgment the best interests of Free Geek would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. The election or appointment of a Director shall not of itself create contract rights.

Section 11. Vacancies.

In the event of a vacancy, the Board shall appoint an interim Director for the uncompleted term.

Section 12. Compensation; Conflicts of Interest.

- a. Directors shall not be compensated for their services as Directors. Directors shall be reimbursed by Free Geek for necessary expenses incurred in the execution of their duties and responsibilities. The Board of Directors may establish an aggregate annual limit for reimbursement of expenses incurred in a Director's execution of his or her duties and responsibilities, and may disapprove, by a majority vote, of any specific reimbursement request submitted.
- b. No Director shall be liable to account to Free Geek for any profit realized by the Director from or through any transaction or contract of Free Geek; provided, however, in the case of any such contract or transaction requiring authorization by the Board, any Director who personally or through any firm or corporation is interested in such a contract or transaction shall recuse themselves from the decision. Such Director may be counted in determining whether a quorum is present at any meeting upon which action thereon is taken; and such Director shall be responsible for disclosing to the Board his or her interest in any such contract or transaction.

Section 13. Action By Directors Without A Meeting.

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Directors of Free Geek, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the Directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the actions so taken shall be signed by all

the Directors not recused with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent shall have the same effect and force as a unanimous vote of said Directors.

Section 14. Place of Meeting.

Meetings shall be held at the corporation's principal place of business unless otherwise stated in the notice.

ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers.

The Officers of Free Geek shall be a Chairperson, a Secretary and a Treasurer. Each Officer shall be elected by the Board at its annual meeting from among the Directors. Each Officer shall serve for a term of one (1) year. Officers shall assume their respective duties immediately upon election.

Section 2. Duties of Officers.

- a. Chairperson The Chairperson shall convene all meetings of the Board and shall discharge such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board.
- b. Secretary The Secretary shall provide for the keeping of the minutes of the meetings of the Board and of any standing or temporary committees thereof; shall be responsible for the timely preparation and delivery of all notices to be given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or as required by the Act; shall be custodian of the corporate records and the seal of Free Geek (if any) and shall be responsible for authenticating the records of Free Geek as duly authorized or required by the Act; and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board.
- c. Treasurer The Treasurer shall provide for the oversight of all the financial affairs of Free Geek; shall be the legal custodian of all the corporate funds and securities; shall deposit all funds in the name of Free Geek in such bank or banks as the Board shall by resolution specify; shall keep proper account books and perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board. The Treasurer may delegate daily financial duties to the Staff, but must review the details on a quarterly basis.

Section 3. Other Officers.

The Board may by resolution create such additional and special Officers as may be considered necessary or desirable in addition to those hereinabove described. The appointment, tenure, removal and succession of persons to hold such offices shall be as the Board shall provide.

Section 4. Compensation and Expenses.

Unless otherwise established by the Board, no Officer shall be compensated for his or her services as an Officer. Expenses incurred in connection with performance of an Officer's official duties may be reimbursed upon approval of the Board.

Section 5. Resignation or Removal.

Any Officer of Free Geek may resign from such position by delivering written notice of the resignation to the Board, but such resignation shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of Free Geek. Any Officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board may be removed by the by the Board, except for the Director or Officer in question, for cause, when in its judgment the best interests of Free Geek would be served thereby. Such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. The election or appointment of an Officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights.

Section 6. Vacancies.

Vacancies in any office caused by any reason shall be filled by the Board at any meeting by selecting a suitable and qualified person to act during the unexpired term.

Section 7. Elections.

The nominating committee, a standing committee of the organization, shall nominate, at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting, a slate of qualified candidates for the director position whose terms are to expire or are vacant, and its slate of candidates shall be included with the notice of the annual meeting. Following the report of the nominating committee at the meeting, any director of the organization may nominate other candidates for the available director positions, provided that the nominees agree to serve if elected. At the conclusion of nominations, the Board of Directors shall vote for each position by secret written ballot.

ARTICLE V. COMMITTEES AND OTHER GROUPS

Section 1. Committees of the Board of Directors.

The Board may create one (1) or more committees of the Board of Directors. The Board may appoint Directors of the Board to serve on them or designate the method of selecting committee members. Each committee shall consist of at least one (1) Director of the Board. The Board may appoint non-Board members to Committees of the Board who have specific experience in the committee's area of responsibility. Committees of the Board shall report to the full Board and require Board consent of all actions unless specific authority has been delegated by the Board to the Committee.

Section 2. Groups other than Committees of the Board.

Groups other than the Board and the Committees thereof may be formed on an as-needed basis by the Free Geek community. These other groups shall not have the authority to act for or on behalf of the Board.

Section 3. The Town Hall

At least annually, the Board shall invite all active Free Geek volunteers (as defined by the Board) to attend a meeting for the purpose of providing input on Free Geek vision and goals. The Board shall strive to integrate this input into its planning.

ARTICLE VI. RIGHT OF PARTICIPATION

No person shall be denied the services or facilities of this organization or be excluded from participation or service herein because of race, age, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identification, creed, religion, handicap, or national origin, and discrimination of any kind in respect hereof is expressly prohibited.

ARTICLE VII. DEPOSITORIES, SIGNATURES AND SEAL

Section 1. Depositories.

All funds of Free Geek shall be deposited in the name of Free Geek in such bank, banks or other financial institutions as the Board may from time to time designate and shall be drawn on checks, drafts or other orders signed on behalf of Free Geek by the Treasurer and/or such other person or persons as the Board may from time to time designate.

Section 2. Contracts.

All contracts, deeds and other instruments shall be signed on behalf of Free Geek by the Chairperson or by such other Officer or agent as the Board may from time to time designate.

Section 3. Seal.

Free Geek shall have no seal.

Section 4. Borrowing.

Notwithstanding any other provision in these Bylaws, no Officer or agent of Free Geek shall have authority to borrow any funds on behalf of Free Geek, or to hypothecate any assets thereof, for corporate purposes or otherwise, except as expressly stated in a resolution approved by the Board and duly entered in the minutes of the Board. No

loans shall be made by Free Geek to any Director or Officer.

Section 5. Gifts.

The Board may accept on behalf of Free Geek any contribution, gift, bequest or devise for the general purpose of Free Geek, and any such contribution, gift, bequest, or devise is subject to the Board's acceptance.

ARTICLE VIII. AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended by the Board then in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board provided the notice given for such meeting indicates that such amendments will be considered.

ARTICLE IX. INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. Directors and Officers.

Free Geek shall indemnify, to the fullest extent provided in the Act, any Director or Officer who was or is a Party or is threatened to be made a Party to any Proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of Free Geek) by reason of or arising from the fact that such person is or was a Director or Officer of Free Geek. For example, any director or officer who is involved in litigation by reason of his or her position as a director or officer of this corporation shall be indemnified and held harmless by the corporation to the fullest extent authorized by law as it now exists or may subsequently be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the corporation to provide broader indemnification rights).

Section 2. Advance of Expenses.

Free Geek may pay for or reimburse the reasonable Expenses incurred by a Director or Officer who is a Party to a Proceeding in advance of final disposition of the Proceeding.

Section 3. Insurance.

At the discretion of the Board, Free Geek may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director or Officer of Free Geek against any Liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not Free Geek would have the power to indemnify such person against such Liability under the provisions of this Article.

Section 4. Purpose and Exclusivity.

The indemnification referred to in the various sections of this Article shall be deemed to be in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under any statute, rule of law or equity, provision of the Articles of Incorporation, agreement, vote of the Board or otherwise.

ARTICLE X DEFINITIONS

"In writing", as used in these Bylaws, refers to documents that are hand-delivered, faxed, mailed, or sent by email communication.

ARTICLE XI DISSOLUTION

In the event of the dissolution of the organization, the assets shall be applied and distributed as follows: All liabilities and obligations shall be paid, satisfied and discharged, or adequate provision shall be made therefor. Assets not held upon a condition requiring return, transfer, or conveyance to any other organization or individual shall be distributed, transferred, or conveyed, in trust or otherwise, to charitable and educational organization, organized under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, of a similar or like nature to this organization, as determined by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XII. IDENTIFICATION

The foregoing Bylaws	were duly adopted by the Board of Directors of Free G	eek
effective	, 2014.	
	, Secretary	